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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF NK TOLL ROAD LIMITED
Report on the IndAS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying IndAS financial statements of NK TOLL ROAD LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Change in Equity
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “IndAS financial statements).

Management’'s Responsibility for the IndAS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these IndAS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs, profit, cash flows and change in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standard (IndAS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal.financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the=accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the IndAS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this IndAS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provision of the act and
the rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the IndAS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IndAS
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the IndAS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the IndAS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the IndAS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the IndAS financial statements. :

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the IndAS financial statements.

Opinion

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid IndAS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including the IndAS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its loss, its cash
flows and the change in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2016 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at 1st April 2015 included in these standalone IndAS financial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the us, whose report for the year ended
31st March 2016 and 31st March 2015 dated 14t May 2016 and 18" May 2015 respectively expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting
principles adopted by the Company on transition to the IndAS, which have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 we give in the “Annexure A”
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

(c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of
change in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid IndAS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued thereunder.

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B".

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended by Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2017, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements- Refer Note 35 b ii Notes to financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its IndAS financial statements as to
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November,
2016 to 30 December, 2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the Company. Refer Note 33 to the IndAS financial statements.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14/04/2017

'
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ANNEXURE-A

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

NK TOLL ROAD LIMITED
Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report for the period ended March 2017

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the Heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements” of our Report of even date)
Fixed Assets

a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situtation of its fixed assets.

b) As explained and information given to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management in phased manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size
& nature of the company. No material discrepancies were noted on such verification.

¢) Title deeds of immovable assets are held in the name the company.

Inventories

There were no inventory lying as on 31.03.2017, accordingly, the provisions of clause (ii) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

Loans given

The Company has not granted any Secured or unsecured loan to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting under clause 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) does not arise.

Compliance of Sec. 185 & 186

The Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans, investments, guarantee and
security whieh attracts compliance to provisions of section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,
and therefore, paragraph 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

Public Deposit

During the year, the company has not accepted any deposits from the public, and therefore,
paragraph 3 (v) of the order is not applicable.

Cost Records

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the
company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of section 148 the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
specified accounts and records have been made and maintained.
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(vii) Statutory Dues

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, the Company has generally been regular in depositing its undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State insurance, income-tax, Sales-Tax,
Wealth Tax, Service tax, value added tax and cess etc. except in some cases in deposition of
TDS & Service Tax liability during the year. There are no undisputed dues payable,
outstanding as on 31st March, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts in respect of
income tax, service tax etc. that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

(viii) The Company has not defualted in repayment of loans or borrowing to financial institutions,
banks, government or dues to debenture holders.

(ix)  The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instrument) any term loans during the period under audit and therefore, paragraph 3 (ix) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management, _
we report that no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the company by its officers or employees '
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)  Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the
management , no managerial remuneration has been paid or provided and hence not commented
upon.

(xii) As explained, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(xiii) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and
Section 188=®f the Companies Act , 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statement as required by the applicable accouting standards.

(xiv) Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially
convertible debenture during the year under review. Therefore, clause (xiv) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(xv)  As per the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not entered
into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him. Therefore paragraph
3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company.
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(xvi) As per the information and explanations given by the management, company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore paragraph 3
(xvi) of the order is not applicable to the company.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14/04/2017
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ANNEXURE-B

THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NK
TOLL ROAD LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NK TOLL ROAD LIMITED (“the
Company”) as of 31 March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the IndAS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence ta_
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. -

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March, 2017, based on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India".

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14/04/2017
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MK Tedl Road Limited

Balance Sheet
— E T Millions
AE al s at Al
Pariculsrs Not® ststMarch,2017  31stMarch, 2015 Agril 1, 2015
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Intangible assots 4 2611.74 2,717 hB 2,803,040
(br] Inbengible ags2ts under devaloprmen| 4 8.05 [ Rt 3.23
{ap Firsncial Assets
- Qiher Financlal Assets £ 000 1.47 f1.51
(o) Deferred tax agsets (net) 29 98.70 - 142 33
(ezh Clhvar non - current assets g 183 0 &g 0.25
2721.42 2,720,654 3201048
Current assets
la) Financial Assets
{ik Investiments S8 48,13 46,2 44 42
tiip Cash arwd sash oquivalents &k 133.28 53,54 a1 77
(Hly Gank batancas cihes han (i) aboye 5G 56,50 = 2500
{iv) Loans = 85.00 H5.04 1,581 00
(%) Dthes Msarcial ameet B 2683 &.60 80 i
(B) Current Tax Asesta (el 0.00 11.84 15,08
(&) Sther cyrrent assets T 54,323 13.48 B |
414.10 77 48 262480
Total Assets 313653 295214 EA35 25
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(&) Equity share capial B 44,77 A4 77
) Subardinated dabt (in nature of Equity) ba 582.69 1,865 53
{c] Other equity ] [266.52) __ 4457 07
Tetal Equity 360,95 1,757 B3
LIABILITIES
Mon-currenl liabilities
1a) Financial Liabifitios
(i} Bormowings 10a 100487 1,107.72 1,174.18
fiiy Ctiner financial abilitias 12 13.03 1303 0.aa
(b Provisions 13k B7.58 6309 -
() Deferred tax lkabilities (Meat) 29 0.00 285 -
[d) Oiher non - cusrent liabilites 15 D.00 = =
1105.49 1,186,898 117507
Currant labilities
{8} Finarcial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 10b 180000 = e
fif] Trade payebles 1 54.75 2075 193,36
(ili] DMhar financial liablites i2a 108.89 71.52 4.53
{b) Other current liabiities 14 0.50 1.8z 2,438,320
i) Provisions 138 0.00 : 278.07
() Currant Tax Lisbililies (Net) 085 -
e 1689.08 103 08 250256
27T4.58 1,288 77 4.077.53
Total Equity and Liabilities 3135.53 7 BE7 14 533526
The aceamganying suimmay of significant accaunting palicios and ather explanatory information [Aotes) are an inlegrd part of the

Fimancial Statements.

A5 par our attached oport of even date

For Thakur Vaidyanath Alyar & Co.
Chartered Accowntanis
Flem Regn. Mo, GOO0OREN

w
GV Parameswar
Partner
heembership Mo, 11541

Place: Mumbal
Dade: 14th Aprl 2017

For and on behalf of the board

Haushik Fal
Director
DiIM: 05237230

Place: Mumibsai
Diate: 14th April 2017

Madan Hiyani
Direcior
DiN- 7130371
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NK Toll Road Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
— - cim 7 Millionz
Not ‘fear sndad Yearended |
st March, 2017 318 Marcch, 2018
Revonue from Qperatons 15 126.78 31980
Qther Incorme 16 ] 22.02 __ METE
Total Incoma J46.40 356.37
Expenses
Il Diperation 2nd Maintainence espensos 17 G4.60 408
Finance cosls 1@ 165.03 LA 47
Amesisation expense Ll 105,86 8544
Uther nypensag 1 m 9,34 2836
Total expensoes ; : JE4.82 ¥ G AU
Profit/ (loss) bofors tax [16.01) 45,97
Tax ¢apensa
Defarred tax charge/{oomdits {101.55) 145.24
Inemme tas for earier years 0.28) =
[101.83) gEER]
ProfitLoss) for the perind (1% + X1 B8z 195.27)

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 4

Total Comprahensive Income f [Loss) 85,82 (95.27)
Earnings per equity shere of 210 sach
Basic & Dilvied 25 18.97 [21.28)

The accompanying summary of significant accouniing policies and other explanatary infcrmadion (natesy are an integral par
of tha Financis Stalements.

A5 per our aftached rapor of even date
For Thakur Vaidyanath Alyar & Co. For and on behall of the board

Chartered Accountants
Firrm Regn. Mo ODO03EN

e
r S T
C A Parameswar Kaushik Pal Madan Biygni
Partnar Cirector Director
Membership No, 11541 DiM: 05237230 DMz 37130381
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumba

Dt 148th Aprld 2017 Diate: 141h April 2017
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NK Tell Road Limited
Cash fNow Statement

B o T Millions
Year gnded Year ¢nded
A=t March, 2017 F181 March, 2046

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Prafit before exceptional ifems and tay 118.01] 4997
Adiustnients for
Amarisaticn expense 10688 | LAl
Inbemsst inenma {15.77) {33833
Dividend ircome (2.28) [2.54)
Intaras! exprmse ; 188,03 _ 13847
256,82 2AT15

Cash Genwralied from Operations befurs
warking cepital changes

Adivgtments for
(Incresesevdacregse in financial assoels axcept for investments 66 04) H4.04
[Increaseydecieds: in olhor curnent assets {40.84) .82
Increasedduew easn) Intrade payables 26.01 [RLEERELR
Inizease{decrease) in provisions 24.49 217 23)
Introasadociviase) i oiher currer Tabiliies [1.32) 12424 A5
fewisot{dacrease) in Mon cuinsd linhistles . L
154,70} (2.T1847)
Cash generated Irom uperations 202,12 {2.470.32)
laxas (paid} net of refunds 12.74 3406
Net tash genaratedd from oparating activities - [A] 794.85 {2ATE T
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase/sak pincaeds of mtangbie sasels (inchiding Intangibia
asmds under davelopment) (4.39) B.04
Purchase of curment ivestmonts (et of proceads) [0.65) | 1.1
Ivler corporate deposits repaid . 1.B81.00
Imer corporate dopasits given - (E5.00)
Irier et recaived T.54 T17.48
Mot cash {used in) / generated from Investing activities - [B] 7.49 2 H13.63
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Provesds from Sub-daeht {1,387.24)
Procaods from commercial pager (shor lerm bosrowngsh 1,500.00 -
Mreceeds from long berm Bormovdirgs . (0.33)
Repaymant ol loag lerm borrowings (GE.24) 4741
Inerast gaid (164.26) {130.92)
Nut cash used in financing activitics - [€] _ (137.73) i
Net incroasefidecroaso] In cash and cash wiquivabonts - [A+[-+HC) 79.82 1.48
Add: Cash and cash equivalenis st the beginning of the YEEF 53,64 61.77
GCazh and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13338 5364
Compenenis of Cash and cash sguivaients
Balances wilh banks - in Current Sccounts .57 3733
Doposits with maturity of laes thar thraa manihs 128,82 15.20
Cash on hamd 0.17 L'
Tetal Cash and cash equivalents 12328 53.64

Mote: The atewe Statement of Cash Flows hae bopn prepared undar the ‘ol bMethod’ a5 sat aut in lad AET,
“Bialemmont of Cash Flows’,

The: soompenying summary of eggnilicsant ancounting policies and olfus caplanalory informatsan {nalas) arm an Intagral
part of tha Financeal Slalernends.

A5 par o alliedied report of even date

Fisr Thakur Vaidyanath Aiyar & Ca, Faor and o behall of the board
Claadered Accountants [
Firmn Flegn. Mo, BO0UEHN

——
LN Farmneswsr Kauehik Pl hadan Biyam
Partner Dirpctor Chirg e
Mamberehip Mo 11641 DM S237 30 DiN: 07 140371
Plecor Mumbaj Pilace: Mumbai

Dabe: 14th Aprd 2017 Data: 14th Aged 2017


41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp


NK Toll Road Limited
Notes to the financial statements
Statement of Changes in Equity

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

The accompanying summary of significant accountin
“integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our attached report of even date

For Thakur Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. Ne. 000038

r
C.V.Parameswar
Partner
Membership Mo, 11541

Flace: Mumbai
Date: 14th April 2017

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th April 2017

For and on behalf of the board

Kaushik Pal “Mada ‘I:Eirar;ni '
Director Directpr
DIN: 05237230 DIN: 0130371

T Millians
{ |
Balance at the Changes in equity
beginning of the |share capital during ﬁﬂi’;::t E;?_
year the year ¥
For the year ended 31st March, 2016 44.77 & 44.77
For the year ended 31st March 2017 44 77 5 44 77
B. OTHER EQUITY % Millions.
Resorves
d S
and Surplus Fota
Retained Earnings
i {Note 9b) -
Balance at April 01, 2015 (257.07) (257.07)
Profit for the year (95.27) (95.27)
Other comprehensive income for the year - 5
Total comprehensive income for the year (95.27) (95.27)
Balance at 31st March 2015 (352 34 {(392.34)
Balance at April 01, 2016 (352.34) (352.34)
Profit for the year 85.82 5.82
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 85.82 8582
Balance at 31st March, 2017 (266.52) (266.52)|

g policies and cther explanatary information (notes) are an
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NK Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate information

NK Toll Road Limited (the ‘company’} was awarded on Build, Cperate and Transfar {BOT) basis, the
widening of existing two-lane covering 33.48 kms strelch from Km 258845 (End of Namakkal By pass) -
Km 28260 (Start of Karur Bypass) Section ot Malional Highway No.7 in the State of Taminady and
operalisn and maintenance thereof, under the Concession Agreement dated January 30, 2006 wih
Naticnal Highways Authonity of India. The Concessian Agreement is for 3 period of 20 years from the
appointed date as slaled in the Concession Agreement,

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Finanoial Statemeants of the Company comprises of Balance Sheat, Statement of Profit and Loss,
Cash Flow Statemonl, Statement of Chenges in Fquity, a summary of significant accounting policias
nates and olher explanatory informetion

These Financial Statements comply in all rmaterial aspacts with Indian Accourling Standards (Ind A3)
notified under Seclion 133 of the Companies Acl, 2013 the Act) [Companies {Indian Accounting
Stondards) Rules 2015] and ofther relevant provizions of the Ack Thees Financial Statements have boen
preparcd in accordance with the requirements of 1he infarmation and disclosures mandated by Sehedule
Il of the Act, applicable Ind AS. other applicable proneuncameanis and regulations. These Financiz)
Statemenls are tha first Financial Stataments of lhe Company under Ind AS The Finanoial Statements up
to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards nolified under
Cornpanias (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2008 (2= amended] and othar relevant provisions of the Act

Ihese Financial Slalements have been orepared on g historical cost basis, excapt for certain assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value For the purpoze of preparation of these Financial
Statements, (he transition date to Ind AS is considered as April 1, 2015,

These Financial Statements are presented in ¥ Millons, except where otherwise indicated
Accounting standards issued but not yvet effective

Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with customers' have been Published by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) but are nol yet effactive. Ind AS 715 establishes principles for reporting useful information lo users
of the financial statements about the nzture, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
anising from an entity's conlract with customers. Ind AS 115 supersedes other revenue standards ie. Ind
AS 11 and Ind AS 18 notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Management has undertaken an
assessment of the impact of this standard and does nol believe that the impact would be material,

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

a1

Current versus non-current classification

Tha Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current' non-current
classification.

An assel is reated as current when il is

*  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or cansumed in normal operating cycle

=  [Expected o be realised within twelve months afier tha reporting period, or

*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months aftar the reporting period

All olher sssets ars classified as non-current,
A liability is current when,
= |tis cxpecled o be satiled in norma| aparating cycle
*  Itis due to be settied within twelve rmonths affer the reporting pericd, or
= Thare is no unconditional right 1o defer the sstiament of the linhility for at least (welve months after
the reporting pericd
All other liabililies are classified as nor-uumrent

Daterred tax asscls and habilities are classificd as non-current assets and hahilities

The operaling cycle is the time between the acquisition of essets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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Functional and presentation Currency

ltems included in the Financial Staterhents of fhe Company are measurgd using the currency ol the
primary economic environment in whizh the entity cperates {the lunctional curency’). The Financial
Statements sre presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is the Comgany's functional and presentation
CUMTEnCYy.

Transactions and balances

Forsign currency transactions are translated into the functional turrency using the exchange rales
pievaling at the dales of the transastions, Foreign exchange gaing and losses resulting from the
settloment of such fransactions and from the translation al year-end exchange ratas of monetary assels
and lizbilities denurminated in forsign currencies ara recognised in lhe Statement of Profit and Loss with 30
exception of the following.- {

Undes [nd AS 21 exchange differcnces arising on the translation/zettiemant of non-monetary iter should
be treated as income or luss in Statement of Picfit snd Loss However Ind &5 104 gives an exemption for
existing long tarm foreign currency non-maonetary iteins wherein the Cormpany can sontnee the pudicy
adopted for trealment of exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items
perlaining to the asquisition of & depreciable asset for ilems recognized on or before March 31, 2015,

For any new lang term foreign currency nen-monetary item racegnized from or after first Ind AS financial
reparing period, deferral/amartization of cxehange diffarence will not be allowed, rather the Company will
apply Ind A5 21 for recognition of gains and lnsses.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be receved to =2l an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an arderly
transaction between market participants at lhe measurement dale. The fair valug measuremeant is hasad
on the presurmption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either

= Inthe principal market for the asset or liahility, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous rmarket for the asset or lrabitity

The princigal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,

The fair value of an asset or a liabilty is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use whan pricing the asset or liability, assuming that markat participants act in their economic bast interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assat takes into account a8 markst padicipant's ahility to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another markel
participant that would use the asset in its highes! and best uze

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and far which sufficient
datz are available to measwe fair value, maximizing the use of relevant shservanle inputs and minimizing
the use of unobzervable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is messured or disclozed i tha Financial Statements ars
calegonzed within the fair value hisrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the tair value measurement a8 a whale:

Level 1 - Quoled (unadjusted) market prices in aciive markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techriques for which the lowest lavel input that is significant to the fair value
meazuremeant Is dircctly or indirectly observable

Level 3 -Valuation fechniques for which the iowest level input that 2 significant 1o lhe lar value
measurement is unobasrvabla

For =s=eets and liabilities thal are recognisad in the Financial Statements on & recurring hasis, the
Company datarmines whether transfers have nccurred between levals in the hicrarchy by re-sseessing
categorisation (based on the lnwest level Inpul that 1= significant to the fair valua measurement as a wiliale)
at the end of each reporling period.

The Cumpany's Management determines the policies and precedures for bnth recurring and nun -
recurring fair value imeasurement, sueh a5 derivative instruments and unguoled financial assats measured
al tar valua
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At each reporting date, the Managesment analyses the movemenis in the values of assels and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies, For this
analysis, the Manegement verifies the major inpuls applied in the |stest valyation by agreeing the
infermation in the valuation computatior to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management slso compares the change in the fair value of egch asset and liability with relevant
exlgrnal sources to delermineg whether the change is reasonable

For the purpase of fair value disclosures, the Company has delermined classes of gssets and liahilitios un
the basis of the nature, charactonstics and risks of the sssat or liatility &nd the level of lhe fair value
higrarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value, Glher fair valle related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumpticrs of Finsncial instruments
tincluding those camed at amartiscd cost (note 20) and Quanttative disclosures of fair valuc measurement
higrarchy {note 21). i

Revenue recognition

Hevenue is measured at the fair valde of the consideration received or receivable. The Company
recognizes revenus when the emount of revenue can ba reliably measured; when it is probable that futura
economic benefits will flow to the entity; ard when specific criteria have been mat for the Company's
activites, as described below.

Toll revenue
The income trom fall revenue fram aperations of the facility is accounted on racaipt basis,
Contract revenue (construction contracts)

Contract revenue associated with the construction of read is recognized as revenue by reference to the
stage of completion of the projects at the balance shest date. The stage of completion of project is
determined by the propartion that contract cost incurred for work performed up to the balance sheet dats
bears 1o the estimated total contract costs.

Contract cost inciudes costs that relate directly to the specific contract and allocated costs that are
attributable to the construction of the toll roads. Cosi thal cannot be atiribuled to the contract activity such
as general administration cosls are expensed as incurred and classified as other operating expenses,

Others
Insurance and other claims are recognized as revenue on certainty of receipt basis

income on investment is recognized based on the terms of the investment. Income from mutual fund
scheme having fixed maturity plans is accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturity of such
investments. Inferest income is recognised on a time proportion Basis taking into account the amaunt
outstanding and the rates applicable. For all other financial assets measured at amoriised cost interest
inceme is recorded using the Effective Intzrest Rate {EIR)

Accounling of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Toll Hoad Concession righls where it Designs, Builds, Finances, Operates and
Transfers (DBFOT) Infrastructure used o provide public service for a specified period af time, These
arrangermenls may include Infrastruciure used in a public-to-private servica conceszion anangemeant for s
entire useful life,

These arrangements are accounted tor based on the nature of tha consideralion. The intangible asset
medel is used to the exent that the Cormpany receives a right (& license) to charge users of the plablic
service, The finencisl szsel model is used when the Company has an unconditional contraclual night to
raceive cash or another financisl asset from or al the direction of the grantor for the construction servicos.
When the unconditional right o receive cash cavers anly parl of the sarvice, the two models are comhined
W account separately for each component. It the Company performs more than one sorvice li.e.,
construction o upgrade services and operalion services) under a single confract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is zllocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services
delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable,
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Intangible assets model

Intamgible assets arising out of =ervice CONCEssion arrangements are accounted for as intanaible assets
where the Company has a contractual right to charge users of service whan the projects are complated
Apart from above per the service concession agreement the Company is obligated 1o pay the amount of
premium to National Highways Authority of India (NHAI}. This pramium obligation has been treatod as
Intangible asset given it is paid towards getting the right to eam revenua by construcling and cparating the
reads during the concession pericd.

Hence, the total premium payabie to the Grantor as per the Service Concession Agreement is also
recognized as an 'Inlangicle Assets’ and the corresponding  obligation for commitied premium (s
recognized as premium obligation.

The intangible asscls s messured st the fair value of consideration tranisferrad o acquirc assel, which 12
the fain value of considaration received or recaeivable for the conslruction servicos deliverad

Amortization of concession intangible assets
The Intangible assel recognized are amortised over the conceszszion pencd on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pallern in which the assets economic benefits are consumead The projectod
total toll revenue 13 basad on the independent trafiic valume projections; Amaortization is revised in case of
any material change in lhe expected pattern of economic benefiis, Refer note 22 for description and
significanl terms of the concession agreemeants i

f
Financial assets model
The firancizl asset madel applies when the operator has an unconditional right to receive cash or anather
financial asset from the grantor in remuneration for concession services. In the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantar contraciually guarantees the payment
of amount specilied or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between amounis received from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract

Financial Assels resulting fram application of Appendix A and Appendix B of ind AS 11 are recorded in the
Balance Sheet under the heading "Other Financial Asssts” and recognized at amortised cost.

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
the concessien grantur covering only part of investment, with the balance to be recoverad fram by charging
users of service . In such arrangemaents the investment amourns guaranteed by the concession grantor is
recognized under the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized under the Intangible
assel model,

Any asset camied under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the
financial azzetl expire.

Maintenance obligations

Contractuzl obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructurs iprincipally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Infrastructure asset in
operalional condition except for any enhancement elament) are recognized and measured st the hest
astimate of the expenditure required 1o setlle the present obligation at the balarce sheet date for which
next resurfacing would be required as per the concessicn arrangement. The provigion |5 discounted 1o ils
present value at a pre-tax rate (hat reflects current market assessmants of the fime value of monay and the
risks specific to the liahility.

Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and ligbiities are messured at the armount expectad to be recovered from or
pard fo the laxabon authorities The tax ratcs and tax lans used o compule lhe amount are those that are
anacted ar substantively wnacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and
gernerstes tavahle income. Current income tax relating to items recognized culside the Stalzment of Prob
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss [either in other comprahensive income o
in equity), Current tax tems are recoghized in correlation to the Underlying transaction aither in other
comprenensive income or directly in equity. Management penodically evaluates posilions taken in the tax
returns with respect to siluations in which zpplicable tax regulations are subject to nlepretation and
establishes pravisions where appropnate.
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3.4

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance shest appreach on lemporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and lisbilities and their carrying ameunts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date

Deferred tax hiabiities and assels are recognized for all taxable termparary differences

Deferred tax assets are recognized for Unused tax losses o tha extent thal il 1s probable that taxable profit
will e available against which the deductible temparary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
lozzes can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the axtent
that it is na langer probable that suffisient taxable profit will be available o allow all or part of the deferred
lax sssat fo be utilized. Uniecognized deferred tax assets are re-assesscd at sach raporting date and aie
recogrized o the extent that it has becdme probable that future taxable profits will allvw the dafarred tax
w556l o be recavensd

Daferred tax assels and liabilities are measured at the tax ratos (hat ara expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the lisbility is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively anacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax relating to ftems recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recogriFed outside
the Statement of Profil and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in aquity). Deferred lax itlems
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in cther comgrehensive income or dirgetly
in euity.

Deferred lax assets and defarred tax lisbilities are offset if a legally enforceable right axists to set off
current tax assels against current tax |atilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxabio antity and
the same taxation authonly.

Borrowing costs

Berrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construclion or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to gat ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing cosis are expensed in the period in which they ocour
Borrowing costs consist of interest and olher casts that an entity incurs in connection with the borowing of
funds, Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs

Leases

Operaling lzase payments are recognized as an operaling expense In the income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Premium Deferment
Premium Deterral (i & premium pavable less paid after adjusting premium deferment) is aggrenated under

premiumn deferred obligation in the balance shest. The intersst payable on the above is agyregaled under
deferrad premium obligation. Interest an premium deferral = charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

310 Conlingent liabilities

A confingent liability is a pussiole obligation that arises fruin past events whose existences will be confirmes
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain futura events beyvond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that 18 not recognised because it is nat probable that an cutflow of
resources will be required to settle the okligation. & contingent liability also arizes in extremely rare cases
where there is & lisbility that cannat be recognised becausa it cannot be messurad refiably. The contingent
liability is not recegnised in the books of accounls but its existence is disclosed in the Financial
Statemants.
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311 Impairment of non-financial assets

Mon-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate tha
the carrying amount may not be recoversbla, An impairment loss is recoanized for the amount by which Lhe
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of dispesal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impainment, assats
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largsly
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cazh-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment ara reviewed for pussible reversal of tha impairment al the end of
each reperting period. |

312 Provisions

Provisions are recagnized when tha Carpany has a prazent obligation {legal ar construglive) as a resull of
a past evonl, i1 15 probable that an oulliow of resources emiodying economic bensfite will he required to
eaftle the obligalivn and a ralizblc estimata can be made of the amount of |he obligation When the
Company expacts somc o all of a provision o be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate assel, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain The exgense relating fo a provision s
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimburscment.

It the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using & current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, Ihe risks specific to the hability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due o the passage of ime s recognized as a finance cost.

313 Employes benefits
(i} Shart term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-menetary benefits that are expected to be settled whaolly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employess’ services up to the end of the reporiing period and are measured at
the amounts expectad to be paid when the liabiliies are settied, The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

(i) Leave obligations
The Campany provides sick leave and privilege l2ave to its employees.

Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes inte account
the estimated porlion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lapse The
partion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic salary of the employes
and for the partion that is expected to be availed, the valuations are based on the employeas’ tolal
compensation. The liability for earned leave is also classified as current where it is expected lo be
availed' en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-curreni, The
amounts of current and non-current liability are based on actuarial estimates.

{iil} Post - amployment obligations

The Campany cparates various pest-employment schemes, including
{a} defined benefit plans such as gratuity
i) defined centribution planzs such as pravident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The fabilily ur asset racognizad in the balance sheat |n respect of defined benefit giatuily plans is
the present value of the defined bencfit obligation at the and of the reporiing period less the far
value of plan assels. The defined bencfit obligation is calculated annuzlly by independent acluaries
using the prajected unit credit mathod

The present velue of the defined benefit ubligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference o market viclds at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximabing to the ferms of the related obligation

The nel interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate lo the net balanss of the defined
henefit cbligation and the fair value of plan assels. This cost is included in employee banafil expense
in the staternent of profit and loss.


41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp


NK Toll Road Limited
Motes to Financial Statements

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuanal
assumptions are recognized in the pericd in which they occur, directiy in olher Comprenensive

income They are included in retained eamings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the
balance sheat.

Changes in the present value of the defined benafit obligation resulling from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund conlributions 1o publicly administered provident funds as per local
reguletions. The Company has na further pavment obligations once the contributions Rave becn
paid. The contributions are sccounted for as defined contribution Flans and the conlnbutions are
recognized as employes bencfit expensa when they are dua. Prepaid contributions are MoCognized
83 80 asset to the exdent that a cash refund or a redustion in the fuiure payments is availabla

2.14 Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents in the balenca sheet comprise cash at banks and an hand and short-ierm
deposits with an eriginal maturity of thec months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in valus.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cesh and cash equivalents consist of cash and shari-ferm
deposits, as definad above, net of outstanding bank gverdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company's cash management,

315 Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a dervalive contract is entered info and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair valua at the end of each reparing pericd.

3.16 Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business fram suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is dus within
one year or less (or in the nermal operating cycle of the business if tonger). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities,

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest mathod,

3.17 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of finanoal assets not recorded &l tair
valug through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly attributable transaction cost to the acquisition of
the financial assel. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assels wittin a time frama
astablished by regulation or convention n the markst place (regular way trades) are recognised on tha
lrade date, i.e., the date thal the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset

For purposes of subzequeant measurament, tinancial assets are classified in fallowing calegories;
= at amortised cosl

= sl tair value through profil or loss (FYTPL)

= al [ain value through other comprehensive income (FVTOC)
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Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measurcd at the amaortised cost if both the following sonditions are mat

alThe a=set is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractyal
cash flows, and

b) Contraclual terms of the asset give riss on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the mosl relevant to the Company. All the Loans and cther recervables under financial
asgets (except Investments) are non-derivative financial Bssats with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequenlly measured @i gmortised cost using the
Cffective Interest Rate (EIR) methow, Amnortized cost is caleulsted by taking inlo acceunt any discount or
premium on acquisilion &nd fees or cosls that are an intzgral part of the EIK. The CIR amortizaticn s
included in finance ineame in the Statement of Profil and Loss The lusses arising from imparment ara
recopnized in the Stalerment of Profit and Loss. This category generaly applies to loare and afho
receivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Valus through Statament of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

|
All investments in scope of Ind AS 109 sre measured al fair value The Company has investment in mutual
funds which are held tor trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such slection on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, than all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, sre recagnized in the Other Comprehensive income. There is no racycling
of the amounts from Cther Comprehensive Income (OCI} to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sal=
of investment. However, the Company may transfar the cumulative gain or loss within equity Instruments
included within the PVTPL calegory are measured at fair value with sl changes recognized in {he
Stalement of Profit and Loss,

De-recognition

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company's similar financial
assets) iz prirmarily derecognized (ie. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to recelve cash flows from the asset have ex ired, or
p

The Company has transfered its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full \without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through'
arrangement, and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards af tha
assel, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of tho
asset, but has transferred confrgl of the asset

When the Company has transferred its ngnts to receive cash flows from an asset or has enterad into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and 1o what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
awnership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially ail of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset the Company continues 1o recognize the ransferred asset to the
exlent of the Company’s continuing invalvement, |n thal case, the Company alsa recognizes an associated
liability. The transfarred assot and the associated liability are measured on o basis that reflects the rights
and okligations (hal the Company has retained.
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Impairment of financial assetls

The Cempany assesses on a furware locking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assats
carried at amortised cost and FVOQ] The impairment methodology appiied depends on whether there has
been a significant increaze in credit righ,

I'he Company has three types of financial assets subject to Ind AS 109's expected credit loss model:
*  Lloans receivables measured at amortised cost

*  Relentions recoivaibla, grant receivable from MHAJ
*  Leans given lo employoos

Ihe impairment methodolegy for each slass of financial assets slatad aboye is as fallows.

Loans racelvables measured al amortised cost: Loans receivables af amortised cost are generally short
term in nature considered to be low nsk, and thus the impaiment provision 1= determined as 12 months
expactsd credit lozzas.

Loans given v employecs For laans given to employees outetanding ag an the reporting dales, the has
detennined rediably that assessing lhe probability of default at the initial recognition of each and EVEry luan
or recelvable would result in undue cos: and efforl. As parmitted by Ind AS 102, the eredit provision will be
determined based on whether cradit risk is low anly at each reporting date, until {he loan |s derecognized
Using the impairment methadalogy the Company has asseszed that no loan loss allowance needs 1o be
recorded in the books of aceounts

Expected credit loss VECL') impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognizad as income! axpense i the Statement of Profit and Loes (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The halance shaet presentation for varicus financial INstruments s
described below:

Financial assete measured as =t amortized cost and other contrastual revenue receivables - ECL jg
presented as an allowance, ie. as an integral part of the measurement of those asseis in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the nel carrying amounl. Until the asset mests write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amaount,

Financial Liabilitics
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initizl recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Lass, loans and borrowings, trade payables or ofher payables

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value.

The Company's financial liabilties incuds trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measuramenl of tinancial liabilities depends on thelr classification, as described below:
Loans and borrowings

This is the catagory most relevant o the Company. Aftar initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the EIR methad, Howaver the Company
has borrowings at floating rales. The impact of restatement of effective intarest rate, year on year dus to
resel of intercst rate, is not material Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilitics are derecognized as well as through the transaction Cosl amartizalion procese,

Retention money payable

Thiz 1= the category most relevant to tha Company. Retention Moneys are meastred al Fair value initially
Subseguently, they are measured al amartised cost using the EIR (EHactive inlerest rate) method Gaine
8nd losses are recognized in Stetement of Profit and Loss when the llabilities are derecognized as well as
threugh the EIR amortization Drocess.
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De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obfigation under the ligbility is ischarged or cancellad or
expires When an existing financial ligbility is replaced by another fram the same londer an substanhially
diterent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantislly modified such an cxchangs or
madification is trealed as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Staternant of Profit and | ass.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the nel amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is & currently cnfurceable legal tight fo offset Lhe recognized amounts and there is an intention 1o
zetile on a net basis, (o roaiize the asscts and sete the liabilities simultaneausly. '

Derivalive financial instruments
Initial recognition and subseguent measurement

The Company uses derivalive financial instrumemts —principal anly Swaps 1o hedge its foreign CUTTENCyY
risks. Sush derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the dale on which a
derivative contract is entored into and are subseguently re-measured gt tair value, Derivatives are corned
as financial asscts whan the fair value is positive and as financigl liabililizs when the fair value 15 negative.

Any gaine or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are laken dirzcily 1o Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Segment information

The Company is engaged in “Road Infrastructure Project' which in the context of Ind AS 108 “Operating
Segment" is considerad as tha only segment, The Company's activities are restricted within India and
hence, no separate gecgraphical segment disclosure is considered necessary

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future =vents that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
elieved fo be reasonable under the circumstances,

The Company makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future, The resulting | accounting
estimates will. by definition, seldam equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are
dizclosad below

Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Agpendix A of Ind AS 11 'Service Concession arrgngements’ s
spplicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private service
ConceEssion arrangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHAI as per
which the Company would parlicipate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer [DBFOT) basis
the toll roads infrastructure, Alter the and of the concession arrangement. the Company has to transfer tha
infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to National Highway Autheorities of India (MHAL.

Accardingly the Company has reconnized the intangible assets recognized as per the accounling policy
mantioned in Note no 2.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under sorvice CONCESSioNEIre arangsment’,

(i} Income taxes

The Cormpany has recognized deferred tix assels relafing to canicd torward tax losses o the cxtent tere
are sufficient laxable temporary differances refaling to the same taxation authority against which the
unused tax losses can be utilized. Howsver, the utilization of tax losses alzo depends on the ability of the
Company to satisfy cerlan tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forcoasted tutura
taxable profite and has therefore recognized deferred tay assets in relation to tax |psses.
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NK Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

(iii) Amortization of concession intangibie assets

The Intangible assot recognized are amortised over the Loncession period an the basis of projected tolf
revenue which refiects the pattern in which the assets economic benefils ara consumed, The prejectad iotal
loll revenue is based on the independent traffic veluma projections; Amartization is revised in case of any
malerial change in the expected pattern of econamic benefits

{iv) Impairment of concession inlangible assels

The Company tests intangible as=ete and cash gencraling units have suffcred Bny impaiment, n
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 311 Ihe recoverabla amount of sach cash
generating umit has baen determinad based on the greater of value-in-use and fair valua laes costs (o sell
calculations. These calculations require the use of assumptions regarding Iraffic flows, discount rates,
growth rates and ather faciors affecting cperating activites of the cash generating unite

{v) Fair valuation of derivatives and other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not freded in an active markel 15 determined using valuation
lechnigues. The Company uses its judgmenls to =alect a variety of metheds and makes assumptions lhat
are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balancs sheet data. |

[vi) Provision for resurfacing obligation (major maintenance expenditure)

The Company records the resurfacing obligaticn for its present obligafion as per the concession
arrangement to maintain the toll roeds at every five years during the congession pericd. The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expected future payments. The calculations
to discount these amounts to their preserl value are based on the estimatesd timing of expanditure CECUTing
on the roads,

The discount rate used lo value the resurfacing provision at its present value e determined through
reterence to the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure.
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NK Tall Road Limited

Notes to the financial statements

Note 4 - Intangible assets

{including Intangible assets under developmant)

¥ Millions

\Er'ﬁed jnﬁ;i_r'c-m'fﬁ
Cpening gross carrying amaown| 37962

) Toll Callnction
Particularg rights

{intangible Assets)

[

Intangiblo assets
under development

323
Additiong - 277
Cloging gross carrying amauni 317562 .00 |
Accumulated Amerifzation and impalrment 376.54 £
Opening accumulated Amoriisation and impaimant 37654 3
Aunoriisation charge for tha yeas 85,40
Cleging accumulaled Amorisation and impaiment 482.03 =]
Met samying amoum 2717.58 8.00
Year ended March 2017
Upening gross camying amount 3,179.62 6.00
Additions - los
Closing gross carrying amount ) 3,179.62 E.ﬂ_?
Accumulaled Amortisation and Impairment 462.03 -
Opening accumulated Amortisation and Impairmont 462.03 -
Amorizalion charge for the year 105.86 -
Closing accumulated Amortisation and impairmant 567.80 -
Nat carrying amount 2,611.74 9.05
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Notes to the financial staterments

Note 5 - Financial Assets - Current

Note 5 {a) - Investments

Investrment In mutual funds

Quoted

Heliznce Liquid Fund - Dally Dividend Plan®
March 31, 2047 © (44146 198) @ {1114.15)
March 31, 2016 (41513.92) @ (1114.15)
March 31, 2315 0 (39RGS /1) @141

" Investmants resticled by way of lien
Agaragati market valua of investments
Mate 5 (b} - Cash and Cash cyuivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

Halances with banks
= in current accounts

Deposits with maluily of 888 than three maonthe

Cash on hand

Note § (c) - Other bank balances

Deposits with maturity of mare than three manihs bul less/than

twelve monthe

Cash balance not available for use:

Certain project 5PV are required to malntain restricled cash
arrangements. These restricted cash balanc

Cash Flaw Statement.
Cash held an restricted fixed deposits

Fized Depasits

Mate § (d) - Loans

Unsecured, considered good
Lgans jo athers

o - ¥ Millions
As at s ar Y|
31st March, 2017 318t March, 2018 April 1, 2015

4818 4B.25 44 43

4918 4525 a4 .42

49.18 4625 44 42

157 KPRk 613

128.92 15,20 44 .50
T i e, VY

133 26 53.64 51.77

56,50 25.00

56.50 2500

which can cnly be used a5 a reserve
&5 have not been included in the year end cash balan

far servicing the debt under financing
ces for the purpeses of preparation of

56,50 102 .50
5G.50 B RN
95.00 95.00 1,581 00
9500 55.00 1,981.00°



41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp


NK Toll Road Limited
Maotes to the financial statements

Mate § {2} - Othor financial assets - current
Intarest accrucd on lixed deposils

Helenlicn money recalvable from NEHA
Interest accried on loans

Claim seceivable from ML

Mote 5 (f) - Other financial assels - Non - current

Security Deposits
Deposits with maturity of more an bwelve manths

Note § - Other non-curront assets

Prapau Fxponsos

Mote 7 - Othor Current asscls

Advance o vendars
Advance o emplayeos
Frepaid bxpenses

Dutiez and taxes receivatble

A at s ai Az al
31st March, 2017 31st Marsh, 2016 Al 1, 2015
0.54 .02 -
1,38 1.38 1.34
12,80 521 CHERE]
Mol s o o p= e T
2583 B.G0 GED 76
- 147 1.51
: = Hp 10
i 147 B1.51
1.93 0.5% 025
1.83 050 025
173 282 .6
0.35 J.40 0.7
51.67 10.24 3
0.57 D02 15.67
5433 13.48 17.30
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MW Toll Road Limited
Motos to the financial statements

Particulars

Mote § - Shara Capital and Dihar oouity
Kota 83 - Authonsed Share Capital

Al lhe beginning ol tha waar
At Incresse during the yesar
At tha e af lhe yeee

Mote Ak - lssued, subscribed and pard-up eyuity
ahare capital

Al begnaing of the year
A ¢ Irergase daing tha yeer
At lhe gnd of e yoae

Mate &z - Terms and rights antacked to Iquily shars

The Camgeny has only ona class of shae miared s as Eauly Bharrs having a Far Vo of s 10,
hrikders ot agualy shames Wil ke entdied 1oeocia remaining ansuls of the: eomgany, attar distritn mise of

T i N & ﬂlll?uﬂ
Nag of Ag at Az A al
Shares ITse March, 2017 _ Mt Warch H1E Apell 12015
10,66,00, 000 1.000.00 100040 1.0651 20
ul ¥ 10 pach & - E
1,00000 1,000 1, 1, 00000
— RS
44, FT 000 44 77 LE 40T
al T 10 rech - % H
AT 44 77 AT

in prepoctian b numinar af squity sharee beld hy e sharshosdars

Motn 8d - Reconciliation of nos af Sharcs
Nz of Shares at b boginning = the waBl
Addd : Mos of Sharae lssued dLfing the yaar
Nas of Sharos-al thirend of the pear

Noto 8¢ - Sharos hald by the Sponsos
Company o their subsidiarios/associates

Reliunes nfrastruciums Linded
(Immeriats and WHimate Hoksng Company!

Kete 8 - Details of Sharcholders halding more than 5% sharus
Redianca Infrastructirs Limited

Mo of Sharas
¥ ol hiolding

447700000

d4, 77 000,00

44 77 D00 00
10070

A4.77,000.00

A4 77,000 00

A4,77.000 00

T 00000
100%

v Ty et o ligosdation of | we sorprey, tFee
&l prufcretind amounts. 1w dislriterion will be

&4, 7700000

4,77 G0 0O
100%
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HNK Toll Road Limited |
Motes to the financial statements |

|

4 M-Ihpﬁ
Az at As At As &t
Jist March, 2017 318t March, 2016 il1, 2015
Note 8a - Sub-ordinated debt {In nature of equity) |
At the beginning of the vear 1,959.53 1.969.92
Inerease / (decreass) during the yoar {1,387 24)
Al the end of the year 5AZA0_ 156568 1 968 55

Terms and rights attached to Sub ordinated debts infused by Sponsor elengwith its Subsidiaras
Repayment based on avallable cash fow after TepayMmant of the: colire secured loans 1o Lenders and carries 09 inborost

Mote 9b - Retained Eamings

Al the beginning of the year [B52.34) (25T.07)
Med Profit for the year BE.az2 [83.27)

Al Ihe end of the year = [266.52] ~ (35224 (2E7.07%
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WK Toll Road Limited
MNotes to the financlal statements

Heote 10 (4) - Bormowings - Mon current = ) - t Milligns
As al Mg at A sl
Jist March, 2017 A1st March, 2015 Ayl 1. 20156

Secured
Oehentures
Nen-Corvertible Debenturas 425,39 470,00
Term loans
From banks

Rupee lerm igan 579,48 83647
| rn financial insnobigns

[Rupee tarm loan 115418
Toual - 1,004.87 1107 72 114418

1} Rupee Term Loan fram Banks -

The Barrowings s seeured by the way of terms stated ir Comman Loan Agresmunt entered betwesn MKTR and Consatium of
ferderg:.

(i a first ranking pari passu moyage/charge ovar all the Borrower's immeveatla and mowable prapertios, oth presond and future,
ewcepl e Project Assels |

fik & fesl ranking pan passu charge on all the Bomowers bank aecouils including, but nol lmiled to the Escraw Accounl jbs Sub-
Accounts whers all revenues, Disbursements, receivablas shall be veposited and In al funds ram fime le-fime deposiled Lserein and
in all Permitled Investments or olhar socures representing all amounls credited 1o the Faaow Accaunt

(iil} & first Fanking parl passu charge on all movable tngibie snd intangitle assels of the Borrower {ather than thase specifisd in
paragraphs (i) above and (v} below] including bul nal limited 1o is goodwill, undertaling and uncalled capital, both prosert and
uture, except the Project Assols,

() & Nrsl ranking parl passu charge ever ! esslgnment of the fight, title, interests, benedits, claims and demands of the Bamower in
lo-and under any letter of credit, guaraniees (excegt the guarantees issued in favour of MHAD including contractor guarantses and
liquidated damages and perfarmance bond provided by ary party to the Project Documents

iy the applicable interes! rale for Rupee Term Loan vaies from 10.00% to 12 0% p.a

2) Non-Convertible Debentures:
(i) Rated Sacured, redeemakie non-converible debenturs of facs vilue Re.1,00,0000, repaymani starting from 318t Doc 2015

iz The applicable Interest rate for non-convertible debentins s 10.20%p.a

Hote 10 (b) - Borrowings

Unsecured
[unsecured, repayable on demend and intenst free)
Conmercigl Papar 1,5600.00 . .

1,500,00 e .

Commercial Paper;
Rs 180 er. rated unsscured commercial paper repayment slating from D3rd Detober 2017

Nole 11 - Trade Payables
Tiade Pavables 58,75 2878 193,34

56.75 9.7 193 36

(&) Dues to Micro and Small Enlerprises

Disciosura of payaide v vendars as defimed under e “Wicin, Small @nd Medium Fileprise Dovelapment Act, 2000" ie basod oo the
Informanicn availakle wilis the Company renanding {he stalus of regestration of BUch vendurs under the sod Act, 88 per the mibeition
ieeeived fram them on requests made by e company, Thiere are no overdue princnal amounts/inienss) pavable amourts fof
Uclaped paymantes to such verdors at the Balanoo Sheet date. Ther: are no delays in paviment made ta such suppliers during he
yesu o Tor any sarlier years and accordingly there s no interest paid o outstanding intarest in this regard in rzspect of payments
made tuing the year or broughl forwerd fram pravious YEES,
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NK Tol Reoad Limites
MNotes to the financial stalements

Note 12 {a) - Other financial liabilities - curront

s at As 3t hsat
Jist March, 2017 31st March, 2015 Apal 1, 2015
Curren| Maturities of lang fermn debd 103.20 GE.1% 4.80
Inferest Accrued on bomowings 565 530
Emploge: benefits payvable iz 003 ) 0.03 ) wod
Total 108.49 sz 4.53
Mote 12 [b) - (Hher financial liabilities - Non - current
Mon - Current
Retemicn meoney payvable 1304 13 0% .84
Tatal 13.03 1303 038
Note 13 (a) - Pravisions - Current
Qtherg
Hesurfacing exponsas - - arnor
= o 2787
Mote 13 (b} - Frovisions - Mon - Currant
il
- Resurfaging expenges Br.58 [ERH -
= £7.58 6309
Movemnent of Resurfacing provisions Is as follows:
At the beginning of the year 53.09 arany 20838
Charged ¢ [credited) 1o Statement of Prafit and Loss
Prewvision made during the year 24.44 42 06 44.71
Hminehing of discount - 2.28 2500
Amount utilised during the year - (215 B8]
Atine end of the year P #7.58 8208 27807

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimatog

A per the sorvice concession arrangarment with NHAJ the projee: SBY s obligated to carry gut resurfacing ol the roads under
concession. Tha project SPY estimates the likely provisian required towards resurfacing and acorues the costs on g siraight line
basis gvier the penod at the end of the which resurfacing weuld be required, in the Statement of Profit and Loss in acoordance with
Ind AS 37 " Provisions, Contingenl Liabilftiss 2nd Conbngeil Assets

Note 14 - Gther current liabilities

Dhubes and taxes pavabls 0.50 1.82 13z
Umwsarmesd revenue . - 2.424 88

0.E0 1.82 2,426.30
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NK Toll Road Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Note 15 - Revenue from operations

Operating income

- Income from toll collections
Compensation towards Toll Suspension
Other Operating income

Note 16 - Other incoma

Dividend Income on current investment

Interest incomea

- On financlal assets carried at amortised cost
- On fixed deposits

- Others

Insurance claim received
Miscellaneous income

Note 17 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expensas (Refer Note 35a)

Subcontracting expenses
Maintainence of Roads
Electricity expenses

Handling Charges

Site and other direct expenses

Mote 18 - Finance Costs

Interest on loan
Unwinding of discount on provisions
Other finance charges

Note 19 - Other expensas

Rent

Rates & taxes

Insurance

Legal and Professional Charges

Expenditure toward Corporate Social responsibility
Alditors Remuneration

Travelling and Conveyance

Other miscellaneous expenses

T Millions
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 . March 31, 2018
308.47 319.60
18.21 X
328,78 318.60
2.28 2.84
9.98 29.38
5.15 4.44
0.64 p
371 b
D._ET -
22.02 36.77
30.85 7.83
23.38 33.86
4.49 5.19
0.68 0.60
522 6.50
64.60 54.08
181.67 134,52
- 2.25
3.35 1.69
185.03 13847
0.25 0.32
0.17 0.05
2.01 2.19
2.33 23.19
0.79 -
0.42 D.70
0.11 1.22
3.24 0.88
9.34 28.36
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MNotes to the financial statements

Mote 20 - Fair value measurements
Signficance of financial instruments

Financial assels

At amortised Cost
Loans
Security Deposils
Fixed deposits with maturity of more than 12 months
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Interest accrued on loans
Retention Monay receivable from NHA|
Cash and Cash equivalents
Other bank balances g
Claim recaivahla from NHA

At Fair value through profit & loss

Mulual fund Investments
Fareian currency forward exchange contracts

Total financial assets

Financial liabilitias
At amortised Cost

Floating Rate Borrowings
Debentures
Trade Payables
Retention money payable
Interest accrued but not due
Employee Benefits Payable

At Fair value through profit & loss
Total financial liabilities

- * Millions
As at As al As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 April 1, 2015
85 00 gs_La 1,981.00
3 1.47 1.51
= 2| 60.00
084 0.02 s
12.80 5.21 F88.88
1.38 1.38 1.38
133.26 53 B4 51.77
56.50 5 75.00
11.01 " E
4918 4625 44 42
359.78 202.96 2,853.05
2,182 68 703.01 1,178.98
42539 470.90 ;
58.75 29.75 193.38
13.03 13.03 0.88
566 520 :
0.03 0.03 0.03
2,685.55 1,222.02 1,373.26
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MK Tall Road Limatad
Haoles to the financial statomeits

e . i) P Ml
A al Aa a8t LT
315t March, 217 s March, 2016 april 1, 2015

MNote 21 - Fair value Hiorarchy
|} Fair vabug hivvarchy - Becurring fair value measarmiris

Findncial assuls

Bt Fair value through profit & loss

Lewnl 1
Mutu fund Invesiincids 4115 46 75 4447
Total lmancial assatg T 4948 [ 4 42_:

Financial lsabililivs % E

Tatul Fianaial ikanilidkos R e T W e e

e I —

[P) Fair value hivrerchy - Azsats and babililivs which arg mizasured al amorlised cost for which lair vahos are disclosud

Finanzial assprg

Total inancial assots . 3 iy = S =
Financial lfabilitios

Level 3

Flealing Hatie Horrwaings 2 187 6 Fham 1178 45

Ciebentures 428 39 Eriek:li] -

Reotantion maney payable 1363 1303 a8s

Tatal financial fiabililics - Deap BG4 TFET

Rusogrised fuir valug ikasarnsments

Lewal 1: Leved 1 hivea chy incluges financial inslraments imeasured UEiny quoted prices. This indudes mutual fnds el hoe quoted price, | ha
mutugl funds ane vakied using e closng NAW.

Lewal 2; The fair valwe of financial instrumenis Hrat pre not badud in an active rarket (far example, cver-the.counter detivntivas) is delermned
using valualion fechniguas which mesimise the use af shsarabis market dals and rely as itk as possible an entity-speciic astimeles, I all
sgnificant inputs reguired 1o 1air vale an instrumant are ohservabia, the instrmen i Inchuded in lovil 2,

Pl 32 1 o or mare of the sqnilican: inputs §5 aol Based on absarvate marked data, e insiniment s ineludad i leved 3. This is the casa for
parfwings, debentures, [Rerenlion monay ayabhe and hedging dervative incleded in vl 3.

Valuation tochnigue usod to determine fair value
Spechc valalion fochnigues used b yaha fnancisl Instrurments mciuds
= e se of quoted markor prices or dealpr fuetes for simidar insiruments

* the fair walue of Sorvard foreign oechange contrasts and principal swag is detormined using forvesd oschange ratas ot (o belance shoot dak:
*ha taie velue of the nsmaining Snancizl nstrurmnis 5 delermineg using discounted cash fow analysis

{e) Fair value of financeal asscts and Fabilitios masured
Financial assels

Carrying value of tinancial assots at smortised cost
Tetal Financial asscets at amoisod cost : ) ' o

Fair value of tinancial assofs carried at amurtisnd ol

Tetal Fair value of financial assuls at amortised cost R T e =
Fimancial limhlirjey
Carrying vaiuw of finanoinl lisbilties al amaerises cost
Floating 11 barrowings 2,182,860 oy 1,1/8.98
Wabamilues 425,39 470,80
Rilention money 1303 1303 nag
i T — —_ - - P ——
2,521.10 1,185.94 1. 1780y
Fair valuw ul financial fabimos cardad gt amorsed cosf
Fluzling rate bomovsiigs 2, 1E2 AR T03.09 1,179
Mebenres 4735 39 4T0.90 -
Retention oy - S 18,08
262110 118614

The carrying vaiue smaunts of fixed depasits, interest accred on depaists, ralenlion money recesvabile, Insuranca chiim receivably, cash and

caeh aquivalienta trade payabis inlorest sccuod. empayee Bene s payable and cadidors fo CHpiEl expsneure apgroximale Bicir fair wahsg
dus to thalr shos tarm nalire

Fer financial assats ard liabiliies that ae maasured at fain wahne, ha Lamying wnoums are equal o he fair valyes:
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NK Toll Road Limited
MNotes to the financial statemonts

Noto 23 = Financial risk management

The company aclivities exposes il Lo market risk, liguidity risk and credit risk.

I'his note explaing the source of nsk which the entily is exposed 1o and how the entity 15 manage tha risk

Hish
Credit risk

Market risk —- fareign exchange

Iarket risk — interast rate

Liquidity risk

Exposura
arising from
Cash and cash
equivalenis, trada
recaivables, financial
aszels measured at
amorlisod cost.

Rertzognirad firarncial
aszets and liahilities
nat dencimmaled in
Indign nupee (INR)

Long-tarm
burrowings al
variabla

Rates

Bomrwenngs and othar
liabilities

Measuremant

Aging analysis Cradit
ratings

Cesh fiow farecasting
Zcnsilivily analysis

Sensitivity analysis

Ralling cash flow
lorecasts

Management

Diversdhcation of
bank deposite, credit
krmils and letters of
criedit

Achively Managed

Actvely Managed

Avallahility of
commilled credit
linas and borrowing
lacilities

The company's sk managemen s caried out by a project findnce leam and central lreaswery Leam [qgroup reasury)
under policies approved by board of directors, Sroup Ireasury identifies. evaluales and hedges linancial dsk i close oo
operation with the group’s operaling unils. The Management ol the company provides writlen principles for averall risk
management, a3 weall 2s policies covering specific areas, such as interest rale risk and crodit risk, use of dervative
financial instrument and non-derivative financlal instrument, ang investments of excess liguidity

Commadity risk:

The company requires for implementation (construction, opesration and maintenance) of the projects, such as cemant,
hitumen, sleel and oiher construction materials, For which, the company entered into fixed price contract with the EPC

conlractor and Q&N Conractor so as to manage ocur e

andlyzis is nol required

Market risk — Interest rate risk

IThe Bank loans fallows floating rates with resets definad under a

Mposure 1o price increases in raw materials. Henee, the sensilivily

greements. While interest rate fiuctuations carry a risk

on financials, Ihe company eam toll income which is linked t5 WP thus providing a natural hedae to the interest rate risk.

a) Interest rato risk exposure

. = 2 Millions
Fanticilar I1st H::c:lt, 2017 3Mst nn:‘:::, 2016 Apr:: a ;015
Wariable Rate Romrowings G482 G5 03,01 1,170 838
Fixed Hale Borrgwings 1,800.00
Total 2,182.68_ 703.01 1,178.98_

by} Sensitivity analysis

Frobit orioss is sensitive 1o lugher/lower interest income from borrowings as & resull of changes in inlerest ratas.

Impacl on profitioss after tax

Az at
315t March, 2017

Az at
21st March, 2016

As at
April 1, 2015

Interest rates (increase) by 100 basis poinks
Inlerest rates decrease by 100 basis paints

{5.39)
2,39

{5.55)
5.64

(9.31}
531
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MK Tall Road Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Note 24 - Capital risk management
The Project 5PV objectives whan managing capilal are Lo

safeguard their ability to confinue 2= a guing cancern, s¢ that they can continue ta provide returns far
. shareholders and benefits for othar stakeholders, and |

Mainlzin an optimal cepital strusiure o reduce the <05l of capltal.

For the puipese of the project SPY tapital management, capilal includes issved #quity capital, share premium, sub-debts and
all ather equily reserves altributabla ta the 2quity holders of the parent Tho primary ebjcclive of the project SPV capital
management is to maximize lhe shareholder velua

The Hroject 5PV manages ite capital structure 3nd makes adjustments in light af changes in esanomic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To ma ntain or adjusl the capital structura, the Project SPY may adjust the dividend
pavment to sherehalders, returm capital to sharcholdars or issue interest free sub-ardinate debl, The Projact 3PV menitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which s net debt divided by intal capital plus netdebl, The Project 3P policy is fo keep optimum
gearing ratic. The Project SPV includes within ot debt, interest beaning loans and borrowings. trade payablas loss cash and
cash equivalents

I order to achieve this overall objective, the project SPV capital management. amongst other things. aims to ensure thal it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest bearing loans and burrowings thal define capital structure requiremenls. Mo

changes were made in the abjectives, policies ar Processas for managing capital for year andad March 31, 2017 and March 21
2018

Consistent with athers in the industry, the group/manitars capital on the bazis of the following gearing ratio;
Net dett including Lotal berrewings (net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by
Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance shaat).

The praject SPV strategy is to maintain a dabt ta equity ratic within 1.85 to 4.00.The guearing ratios at March 31, 2017 and
March 31, 2016 were as follows

{ ) . 3 Mnltu:uﬂ
. As at As at Az at
e i 31stMarch, 2017  31st March, 2018 April 1, 2015
Net debt (a) 1,108.07 1,173.91 1,178.98
Equity (b) 360.95 1,662.36 1,757 63
Net debt lo equity ratio (a) f (b} .07 0.71 na7
5 —— * Millions
. As at Az at Ns-al
PAmEylacs st March, 2017 31st March 2076 April 1. 2015
Net debt (a) 1,108.07 1,173 61 1,178.98
Equity (h) 360.95 1,662.36 1,757.63
Nebt debl plus Equity (c = a+h) 1,469.02 2,838 27 2,936 61
Gearing ratio {a) f ¢ 0.75 041 0.40

P

it~
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MK Toll Road Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Mote No. 25

Carning per share

Year ended

.

Rorcculare 31st March, 2017 31;?'.:.-;:3;?:3%16
Profit / Luss atributable to equity sharehalders (¥, Milions) (A) B5.82 (85 2_?'}.]
Wieighted average nuinber of atjuity shaes for basic and dilutad 44, 77.000 44 17,000
carnings par share (%) ()
Earnings / (Loss) per sharc (Basic and diluted) (¥) {A/B) 1917 (21.28)
Maminal value of aquity shares %) 10.00 1000

=
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MK Toll Read Limited
MNaotes to the financial statements

Mote 26: Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security far non-current borrowings are:

T Millions
| March 31,2017 |  March 31 2076 | Apni1,2015 |
[Current
Financial assots

First charge
Investmeants 49.1% AR.25 44 42
Bank balancas 56.50 - 25.00
Lozns 95.00 8500 1.881.00
Other financial assets 25.83 §.680 B8 26
H&uhrlg charge
Cash and cash equivalents 133.28 5364 [ 51.77
Mon-financial assets
First charge
Inventories . 54.33 24.99 _ 3235
Total current asscts pledged as security 414.10 226.48 2,824.80 |
MNon-current
Financial assets
First charge
security deposils - 147 £1.51
MNon-financial assets
First chame
intangible Agsets 2,611.74 2717 58 2,803.08
Intangible Assets under development 9.05 .00 3.23
Other non-current assets 1.93 0.59 0.25
Total non-current aéé}atﬁ_pl_udged aﬁe?:m‘}tjr i ] 263272 272565 | 2,868 07
Total assets pledged as security 3,036.82 2,952.14 | 5692 87 |
Note 27: Auditors Remuneration
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings ara.
T Millions

March 31, 2017

March 31,2016 |

01, Audit Fees®

0.42

0.42
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HE Toll Road Limited
Motes to the financial statements

Note 28 - Related Party Transactions

A3 pef accounting slandard Ind A% 23 as prescribed wnder the Companies tAccounting Stundard) Fules, 2015, 1he relaled paslies

and transactions arg discloses below

Sponsor Company
Rellance Infrastructune Limiled

Fey Management Personnel

Kaushik Pal - Director (w.el. Dulober 1, 2045)

Madan Biyani - Director {w.e.f, March 31, 2018)

Amitabh ha - Mhirecior fweef, March 31, 201a)

PFaraon hlving singificant influence on the Sponsor Company

Shel Anil 0. Amban|

3 R % Millyrrs
Farticulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Al 1,2016
Transactions during the year :
Toll operation and maintainenoe pxpenses {Including
Preject execution suppen services)
% indra 488 4 8
Balancas al the year and: |
Dther currant llabilities
R Irfra 58T 1.70 2 i1
Sub-debls {in nature of equity} |
Ft Intra 582 88 1,963 93 1 ,Ts.m
Eguity share capftal [exeluding premium)
R Infra 4477 44,77 4477
e —

g —
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MK Toll Road Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

Note No 28 Income tax expense

March 31, 2017

T Millions

March 31, 2018

(a} Income tax expensa
Currant tax
Current tax on profits for the year

! m:zu}

Adjustments for current tax of prior pericds

Total curre nt fax expensa {0.28)

Deaforved tax

Decreasedincrease) in defered tux aszate 103.45 192.34)
[Decreaselinuessa in defored tax liabilitios 1.90 52.80
Total deferred tax expense/{be nafit} [101.55) 145.24 |
Income tax expense {101.83) 145.24

Income tax expense Is attribytable ta-

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Mota: In line with tha requircrientz of Ind AS de, Regulatory Defarral Accounts, the entity presents the rosuling delerred
related movemant in that deferred tax asset {liability) with the related requiatory deferral accounl balances and movements in

within that prazented above in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes. Refer nota 18 for disclosures as per Ind AS 114

lax asset [ll:’-‘.lh'rli‘._-,n'.l'_arld HETS
those balances, instead of

Prefit/{Loss) as per Ind AS from continuing operations belors neeme tax expanse (16.01) 4097 |
Income Tax as per effective Tax Rale of 34 608, {5.54) 17.28
Tax Effact of Permanent fiming differencas (20.78) {20.78)
Recoanition of Tax | nsses | {75.23) 14872
Current lax on Profit for Year -

Frior Year Tax Adjustment | {0.28) -
Tolal Tax Expense {101.83) 14524 |
(b) Deferred tax balances
| The balanca comprises temporary differences attributable to:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2015

Defarred tax liability on account of:

Intangibie Azsats 328.24 304 36 27324
Loan Pracessing Costs 0.58 0.72 0.63
Provision for other lizbilities - 21.84 0.18
Deferred tax assel on account of:

Provisian for other assets 31.70 g0 86,23
Prowision for Retirement of Assets - - =
Provision for Leave Encashment - - -
Unabscrbed losses (including depreciation) 385.82 32018 320.18
Mot deferred tax liability/{Asset) 98.70 {2.85] 142.39
_'{_c_“}_!q'lmr_l!i:l_'rent in deferred tax balancos: | e e

Deprechition IM‘:::’??::EZ’?" Others Total
difference s r
depreciation)

At April 01, 2015 (273.24) 320,18 | 9545 142.39
(Charged)ieraditad: |

- lo profit ar loss - (114.11) {145.24)
| - 10 cther comprehensive income = - - =
At March 31, 2016 (304.36) 320,18 {18.66) [2.85)
(Charged)icredited;

- to profit or loss (23.8T) 75.66 48.78 101.55
|- to other comprehensive income 4 - - ~

At March 31, 2017 {328.24) 395.82 31.12 895.70 |
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MK Toll Road Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Mote 30 First Time Adoption of IndAS

I'he Company has prepared these Financial Statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for he periods ending March 31, 2017
together with the comparative pericd date 83 at and far the year endad March 31, 2015 respechively as described in the summary of
signfleant accowding policies, In preparing these financel statements, the Company has considerad April 01, 2015 az the dats of
transitinn and has adiusted the amounls reported previously in the financial statements prepered In acocordance with the ar.zx.unling
standards nolified under Companies {Accounting Slandard) Rules, 2008 (as amended) and other redevant provigions of the Acl
{Pravious SAAP or Indian GAAR),

The aduplion of Ind AS has been carded out in aecordance with Ind AS 101, First-lime Adaption of Indian Accaunting Slandards.

In preparing thess lind AZ Financial Stalements, the Company has availed vertain examplions and exeaptions in accordance with Incd
AS 101, as explained below The resulting difiercnce betwean the carmying values of the assets and labiities In the Funancial
fStatements as at the ransilion date under Ind AS and Previous GAAP have been recogniscd directly in equity (relaned sarnings or
gnother appropriasle categary of cguily). This note cxplaing tha adjustiments made by the Company in calpling its Previcws GAAP
Financial Statements, including the Balance Sheet as al April 1, 2015,

A. Exemptions from retrogpactive application

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters cartain cxemplions from refrospective application of certain rcquiersnts under Ind AS. The
Company has elected to apply the following aptional exemplions from retrospective application of Ind AF;

la) Amortization of intangible assots arising from service
concession arrangoments
The Company has. used exemption under Ind AS 101 and has continue lo adopt the accounting policy of Provious GAAP for
amartization for intangible assels ansing fiom service concession amangaments relating to concession toll roads inlangible assets
recognized in the Financial Statements

B. Exceptions from retrozpective application

The Company has appiied the following exceptions fram full retrospective application of Ind AS as mandatarily required under Ind
(a) Estimates

On assessmant of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, fhe Company has concluded that there is no
necessity to revise the estimales under Ird AS, as there is no objective evidence that those estimales were in emor, However.
estimales, that were required under Ind AS but nat required under Previous GAAP, are made by ﬂa Campany for the relovant
repering dates, reflecting conditions existing as at that date.

(B} Classification and measurement of financial assets

The classification of financial assels to be meazured gl amarised cost or falr value through other comp[ehansl‘ue income is made
an the basls of the facls and clrcumstances that existed on the data of transition te Ind AS,

C. Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations

Ind A5 101 requires an antity to reconcila enuity, cash flows far the prior perinds. The follvwing table represants the reconciliatians from
provicus Indian GAAP g Ind AS:

I Effect of Ind A% sdoptian an the Balanca Shzet as at March 31, 2018 and April 1, 2015

Il Effect of Ind AS adoption on L Statament of Piofit and | ass for the year ended March 31, 2018
. Reconciliation of tatal Ccyuity a2 at March 31, 2016 and Apnl 1, 2015

V. Reconciliation of total comprahensive incoms for the year ended March 31, 2016

V. Materal adjusiments ta the statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 218
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HE Toll Road Limited
Notes to the financinl sialements

[ Eftect of Ind AS adeption an the Balance Sheet

ASSETS
Mon-current assels
b} Inkangitle aesnls
i) ntang ke asesls undor daveiopr
i@ Finarcsal Assubs
) Dilhaen Francial Assats
(3] Delened lax wusols (naty
(1 Chhier nen - curmrd aaseds

Currant assnts

1A} Finenclal Assets
I} Irvestmanis
(1] Cawsh aincd wnzh agulvalant
(i} Rank briannas ofher than
(] Loans
(¥} {ithnr fnenciel asast

o) Currant Tay A=aets (Met)

[} Diher curment gasets

Total Absuls

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQuny
(8) Equity share caplal
by Ceher aguity

LIABILITES
Man-turment liabilitios
(&) Finarcal Lisdiflics
(| Borrawings
() Other financial NabRbes
(18} Provisons
[} Doefrered bAu ligbidilies (hiot)

Current llablitties
&} Finaricial Liaiihes
(it Trevde payables
() Cahee financial kabiiities
(B CAhar currenl bebithes
(&) Provisions

Taotal Equaty and Liabilities

“Tha presevitalion requrements undar Pravious GAAP differs from and hence
reproupad Frevious GAAF irdormation iz darved based on S sudied inand

T Millions

A at March 31, 2016

(End of lest poriod presented undeor provious GAAP)

) e AS

Indiam Gawie et Ind AZ
il 3,035 62 (3246 03 P
610 . 500
" 1230 (103 1,47
- nn 059
A0 |3.85) 45,25
5388 [0.02) £3.64
£5 060 - )
il .21 (PR & RO
HEY . 1181
s 1343 13 48
— amaae [326.17) _2083 14
44,77 . 477
U 167642 161088
il 307374 |1,972.00 1,107 72
] 18 .08 : 12
fivl : 6300 B3.00
i = 238 2105
2noz 0.53 79,78
faaz 1180 71,82
182 1.62
327028 (326.11) _Lee

As al April 1, 2018

(Dale of ransilivn]
I AS
Endian GAARP" stl|usiments vt AS
274227 (a1 2, B03.C8
- 123 323
- o151 £1.51
. b k] 142 3
176 L5 0o
|
43,96 Q.44 44 47
2 0.0 5177
B0 (B0 5.0
1,961.00 1,49101.40
TS.E3 [1827) LERTRR
1608 i
208
§.020.37
mdernird s
44,47 - A4 7T
20030 1,510 58 171785
3 145.85 (1,901, 75) 100410
084 - 068
=41] |
160 48 284 193,38
5 483 481
24303 (T @A 20
- R EIBAT

& L2837 ! {19311} 5,036.26

the Pravicus GaAPR information has baan regroupnd for case of reearsilioion with g AS Thi
& steternents of the Company for sha year ended 385t March, 2018
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MK Toll Road Limited
Motes to the financial stalements

Il. Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statemeant
of Profit and Loss

Particulars

Revenue from aperations
Other Income
Total Income

Expenses
Toll Cperation and Maintainenca axpenses
Finance costs
Amortizatlion expenss
Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit / {loss) before tax

Tax expense
Defarred tax charge/{cradif)

ProfitiLoss) for the year

Total Camprehensive Income i{lLoss) for the

I Millions

 For the yoar ended March 31, 2016
{Latest period presented under previous GAAP)

Ind AS

Indian GAAP adjustments | Ind A5
{i 31860 (0.007 319.50
3768 {1.H) 3677
357.48 {(1.11) 356.37
{iv) 263,91 (205,83 5408
(). (bl 136.45 anz 13847
i BE AT (10 38} 85 49
{wi} 570 (7.3%) 26,35
531.58 {225.18) 306.40
(174.10) 224.07 48.97
(i} {=.88) 16522 145.24
(164.12) 68.85 {85.27)
(164.12) 6685 (8507
—

g -
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MK Toli Road Limited
Notes to the financial statements

.

Reconciliation of Total Equity

Particulars

Total equity (sharcholder's funds as por Indian GAAF)
Adjustmants:
Retrospective application of sarvice concessianairs arangsments

Discounling impact of Financial assate recognised under
CONCESSinnair: arrangeamant

Capital Rescrve recognised us fnanclal asael

Resurfacing provision recognised as Fer Ind AZ 38 (including
uwinding of discount on rezurfacing provision)

Sub-ordinated debt in nature of equity
Borrowings

Others

Fair value of mutual fund investmenis

Tax affects on adjustments (deferred tax impact)

Total adjustments

Total equity {(shareholder's funds as per ind AS)

- Reconclllation of Total Comprehensive Income

Particulars

Met profil or loss as per Previous GAAP (Indian GALPY
Adjustments:

Armaortization of intangible assels recognisod under Ind AS
Resurfacing provision recognised as per Ind AS 38 (including
unwinding of discount on rasurfacing provision)
Borrowings

CHhers

Fair Value of Mutual Fung Investments

Tax eflects on adjustments (deferred tax impact)

Total of Adjustment

Met profivloss as per Ind AS

- Material adjustments to the Statement of Cazh Flows

Particulars

Met cash llows from eperating activities

Met cash flows lom investing activilies

Met cash flows liom financing activites

MNet increasc/{decrease) In cash and cash erilivalonis
Cash and cash equivalants at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of yoar

[i)
i
(i)
[iv)
il
{1E1)

vl
i)

]

(i)
(i}
{wi)
iy

As at

March 31, 2018
_—

387

{(141.27)

La7h
{240 003

153 05)
1.869.93
209
(2.24)

R
12.85)
) 1,579.42

~ 1,617.59
B e

T Millions
For the year
ended
March 31, 2016
[164.12)

998

214.98
0.27
(1,78}
0.65
{155.22)
68.85
{95.27)

* Millinng

As at
April 01, 2015

202 30

(151.23)

Hh.76

{240.00)

(278.07)

1,666.03

1.82

{0 46}

(.46

152.37
151086

1,712.86_

3 Milliens

Yoar endod March 31, 2016

Inclian GaAP

Ind &5
aljuslments

Ind A%

26.16
113,53
(140.21)

1.85
5177
b3.B4

{2 503.93)

2,490 1
4.22
.00
0 00

(2475.77)
2.613.63

(135.99)
1.88
B1.77
53.64

- ———

g
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MR Toll Road Limsted
Mabas to the fnancial sfatomonts

Herbes bo First tima adapdion of Ind AS
Mote i} - Appfcation of servies concessionaire arangemont as per Appendhx A of Ind AS 11

Appardis A af ind A5 11 ‘Servee Concossianain Arengemant s spplicabie o he Cempany which providus guidares an accunling by e upargiors af pulsic-te-privats
SArvioy CONCOESIon AMANpaments undar which privale seoiar arstiss Pamcipabe in lhe davalopmant, finencing, oueration AR MaiAtenancs of wilrasliucturg far prosdaian
af public servicas. The Company Is angegsd im0 Design, Suikd, Flnarce, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis he kil roads inclurirg aperation and marienans
thoroof gueing He concessen peiod. Ao o Ay of 1he conession ponod e Compan s Mequinou 1o handayer the silasliuclee L. tha toll raass ta the grardoy e,
Matiunal Highway Authodties of Inda PHHA]

AL pir fie ashient fealurs of fhe cor " AR L 1w up R4 & baoioid activily based on wiish reye e i recognizan in the financal stalemsnks whish s s
b wilh the roquinemen) of Apoerdis & of Ind AS 17

2 consin e achuity o e of it ablgason b desigr buld and nanes Arazset hal il rakes feddaboo tha grardur © rovoran & frengn@ed o a slagw uf
compklion basis in aenseancs wth g A5 11 dunng tha enneructon pliasa of the ted s,
- 8N operatng and mEmenanca asthity in respecl of the assors rder ha CoiGuEERN dunng the operataial | uvarun s recogneed i awardance with Ing AS 10,

Inrotum of B8 Acthobes, ihe Sompany ool FannGeraton fian uscrs of il reads as nghl |y recobea il kar usags of ball ronds in porsisenanon tar G linarscing and
constuchivn uf tho nfrastnisiuee bar which an rungioic RAZAE is recogizsd i tho Ananeal sabomante. Alsa am DAF the Corge s s arfangomen pad af e projecl oo
1= ravered by an wurkditianal fAghe 10 recems payimanis fom 1 grarsar e KHAL which Fas been recogiized as Crant recavabie fium NHAL unmer e heac 'hnaal
ausnt and Intangicie assels has boan mengrized 1o e exlant of ung-aranteas Dalance, of wiich the arount is dapencent an S axioat of e af e InfrasiuClure,

Feliuspacive applleation of “Serive Cuncassanaine Brenganml’ hos ind e ehange n e accounting priey of Big Curmpany A4 an e vangilon dute for classfeasen,
FEEDRMECD A sl iInousUImmnre of construclive of assats and martenara: ubligatinns urder the sgivice consaasian ETangmenls.

al Benil |, 2015 wharain e Comgany has an unespdronal ghl o ook regments fram ha graneari&. MiEAl wlich hns baen seducted teain s vust off Intmnginie
Assaly il mEoagnER A tnancal acsels which nadiss under B |rdian SaaP WaS Considedied as promeler s conl isution and wes recogaed & Capilal Beseren’ in
Bztordaice wish AR 12 Accounting for Govemment mars,

Furfiar. impact of finarcis assals eagnized irvier concassongin arEnpemant \nat of discounsng) seunng inincrease i Tows Equity £ 55.75 |nilicns as af March 39,
2018 dnd T 55 75 millions ae i Aol 1, 2045,

Momawer share hag been decraras in nlangible seeels and decreass in tolal eguity, arsing an ssoourd of AppicALnn of sarics aTAngement, of £144,27
mniliuna as at Mareh 39, 2018 and T181 23 milions as al fgll 1, 2015 el cecreass in loss of 1956 millons Tor he year endesd March 291, 20148,

Moae il - Recognition of defarmed tax asseisliallity oz per Ind A5 12

Ind &35 12 muyLires an ey 1o recogrizn defemnd 1ax uming balance sneat appraach, which i based an e LmRorar dffecences babwaon the tax basa of sn asssl o
VenElly prd de camyig amount in thefinanclal slatemerts Defemed tax is proeddes in Al for all amparary dfsrencas arzirg heswann {he wax basas of assets mrd
isbiisas ard her carrying amaurt in the Rnancial slalaments Thi Company fecognizes defarmed ta Asedln far al deductink tompanary dinamrees includng usdsad 1ox
fosscs caniod lonward i the cabonl that it = profakie that sk prohts vedd be avatablo Bgiinz which tha doductinio tampurary difarancus can be ulikzed

Urider indian GAAR dedomed bax was recognized besed on inoams Bporonch e deferrad Rax miuets inease of unugnd Iny iostes camiad torwand ane recognized if ther
i imual eartamty thal sullicient hiuns toabl income vl oo available i redkze the same. Hence on ascount of abov dederned tax asats wora nal racagnired urder
e indian GaARP

On acesir of abova thare has bean incresse in dofermad Eax asgat (net] resulling in decrease n Talsl Exuity by ® 2 05 milions as st Marh 31, 2046 and increase n
Totad Equity by £ 152 37 millions as at &pn) 1, 2015 and decnsasa In less of $155 22 millans during the yese endad March 31, 2018 mainly on accourd of g AS
adiustmens pantaining |o reimapectiva epplication af service ancession amangament and defared fax ssed facagnized for unusad tax sses carried forward a8 per ind

Mota {lii] - Borrowings

Incl A5 108 reguires iranssction coss noured iowards oranition of bomewings i be deducted fram e camying amount of bamewings an Initial fssognition. The sama
15 racognzed a8 interast a3 pAr of the effective imaras! iste methag ovar 1he paried of tha Borrowing

Indad frdian GAAP, teae wire capilalisad to Intangibio aseis as par A5 6 ‘Bamevang cost’ RE AR whan incumad

On @2t of aocws (here has peen nereaga in bornowings by T2.0% midions s al Mareh 249, 2018 and ¥1 82 milars s al March 31, 2015 wih b comrospenging
Adjusbmant in intanpible asests. This resiled n cecreara in losa by T0.27 milons for #0 yoht enced March 31, Jnie.

Mok (v} - Resurtacing sbligation mesgnized as werind A5 37

Under Indian GAAR the sama calpatian wes recognized in iha gear in which TeSLETAERG was eguinad a5 per the congussion BFTARGETENL

The nat pfect of the abive s decraass in toigl #iaily by Y63 00 mifiong as at Marh 39, 2699 and 227807 MHIbCNE g 2t ARk 1, 20715 with caresponcing Bereass iy
Msurfacing prewtaions iral of wwinding daeunt), This resuibor in dacragse in los by #314.99 milliris for e rear argud March 31, 2076

Mote Ju) - Classdficatian of subodinato dehr Instrumante (innatum of epuity)
Ind A% 32 rcutes classiicmion of snancial instruments issued s franclal babilibios of aguity. Subnrdinate gebl insmuments ssugd do nal mant e genmition of &
Tinanoii IAkRy, 8s the lenns do nnr ses & conbraclual abligatisn on he e Coempary # make Ay EImARE oF Dniapal and Reerued nleest thoroen n eanh o oilgy
tnarrisl assct Fumfer, since e nsnmams g Fii-amweriibin, e Comgany is nof raquired 10 sellls the BARFBCES Ly Bauance of e owy egquily nstumems
Ungar indian SAAP, Hiuse nsm iments wens warivd 03 karvangs,

O sccound uf aboe thars has bew creasn n Tesal aguily by T TEAT 93 milions g o Marsn 39 AN and T 196090 milns as m ARFLT, S0 Sowillh & orespanding
aecrease m Lueoaings

Motz (v} - Fair vadue of mutual fund investimnls

Ind A3 108 raquirns mutusl fund investmanes & be measurad ot far HAlue. Tha resulling Tair vakie chanyas in thess investoums hae kaen recogniacad in e mrareg
CAMES 35 an Y rarsiinn dede ang subsuguerty e the stalenont of prafit & loss acguunk |

Urder s Indian GAAR, investmmerds in musisl funds wers class¥iad as curend ivesiment snd wer carried ar feswer of Cokl and fair value,

The net aMact of the weee k& incramse o otal Bty by 7117 milkons @6 ot Moroh 31, 2010 and 70,48 millons as A1, 2015 with colmaspondng increass in
Inveslmeris. £n acesunt of above there has been ing irwd L of mvasl 15 by ¥ 085 milen wilh a Enrespondyy adjusiment 40 relained Bamings far fecconBion

o Faar valui Gange of matusl furd investmang 83 60 the liangison dame ,"’_‘r\
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HK Toll Road Limited
Motes to the flnancial statements

Note 31

Arbitratlen Claims
{a} Arbitration with NHAI

MK had inftiated arbiration proceedings against National Highways Authority of India claiming an amaunt of 71,058 70 millions
on account non-peymant of various claims by NHA inter glig tha extended stay coste, loss of revenue and interast far dalay on
the release of grant eic. The arbitra fribunal has by way of Its Award dated August 31, 2018, inter alia, allowed 8 gum of

1 68942 millions (includes interest of ¥363.50 mikicns il ta date or Award) payable 1o MK by NHAL NHAJ had prefarred an
appeal ageingl the arbitration awerd passad by tribunal ba'are the Hon'ble High Court of Dethl. The Hon'bia High Court on
March 23, 2047 dismissed the ploe of NHAI an merits. On January 7, 2017 NHAI as per directions of arbatral fribynal agreed to
pay an amount of T 11.88 milllons lowards cost of arbibration amaunting 1o T 4.77 miflons and compensation of grant during
canstruction period ¥ 7.21 millions, which was subsequanty received,

The management of the company believes that their cizima are tanable and ars confident that the arbitration award woulkd be in
theilr favour J ;

(b} Claims raisad by EFC Contractors

EPC Confractors have mads varous claims agalnst the company viz. T 853.55 mifficnz on NK. The amouns refered are
including Interest on delayed payment, Howsver, it has been apreed batwean the EPC contractors and company’s that the

payments for the claims would ba made only io the exdent to such EPC Cantractorns claims that have been accapted and paid by
NHA|

Mote 32 Events after the raporting period

El

There are no subsequent events after the reporting perled which roquired adjusirments 1o the financial statamants.

Haote 33 Demonetisation Disclosura

Detalls of Specified Bank Notes ("SEN) held and Transacted during the period DEF'I.IJ'ZI!H'B 10 30M 22016 as pravided below:

¥ Millions
Other denominated
Particutars SBNs Noite Total

Ciosing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 1.00 1.02
(*) Permitted receipts 387 18,78
(=) Permitted payments 0.00 o
{-} Amount deposited in Banks 4. 87 17.43
Closing cash In hand as on 30.12.218 : = 2.28

Note 34 Demonetisation Clalm Note

claimed, being confractually enforceatis and certaln of recovery has bean recognised as ciher aperating income.

As at Mareh 31, 27, ¥ 11.01 millions was receivable and disciosed under Othar Financials Assets - Currens,

Note'35a Toll Operation and Maintenance Expenses

Note 358b :

Tall Operation and Maintenance Expenses {Refer Nobe 17) far tha yaar ended March 31, 2017 includes the fodlowing:

a) In the month of December 2015, dus fo heawvy floods in the state of Tamil Madu it had an Impact on the project assets of

the company. The company hed prefemed claim for the loss Jue to the fioods. Pending ssttlement of tha tame, the amounts
Incurred during the year ended March 31, 20456 and year encad March 31, 2017 for restoration of damages af sils wers bocked
under edvances as claims recaivabls. During the year endea March 31, 2017, the insurance claims were satted at

¥ 7.83 Milions. Accordingly the differerce of Claims Recaivadle and the Insurance Claims actually recelved, amaunting to

1 2.32 Millians was charged off to the Statement of Profit & Lioss undar the head Mainienance of Roads farming pert of Tall
Operation and Mainlenance expanses during tha yaar ended March 31, 2017

b} Purguart ta the NHAI Clreular dated Novembar 15, 2018, whereln NHA| prescribed that micro surfacing may be used for the
renewal caurse, maintenance and repair on natianal highways for at laast 26% to 30% of the lolal lengih. Based on the said
circular the company have setimated the provigion for Resurfacing expenses in the books of accounis,

i} Re-astimation of Toll Revenus:
During the year, the company had appainted a toll conslilant and have re-estimated the tall revenue avar the remaining
concesslon perod. Accordingly, Intangible Assate have bean amortisad prospectively as per the revisad setimaled ol revenus.

I} Contingent Liabilltes:
Tha campany had receivad Nolica 158 of the Income Tax Ast 1881 far AY 2012-12 for levying panalty ufs. 271(1)(c) of
T.1 77,38, 714/ tlowards claim of depraciation as against Anorisation on Toll ABsels [out of which 50% has bean pald under
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NK Toll Read Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Note 36 Figures for the previous year have been regrl:rupedfreclassiﬁEdfrearrarrged wheraver
necessary to make them comparable to those for the current year.

As per our altached report of even date

Far Thakur Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co. Forand on behalt of the hoard
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. Mo 000038N

C.U.Paran{eswar Kaushik Pal Madan Bi rni
Partner Director Director
Membershin No, 11541 CiM: 05237230 DIN: 071303R

i
Place; Mumbal Flace: Mumbai —

Date: 14th April 2017 Date: 14th Apnl 2047
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